

Homeowners Association • Kansas City, Missouri

President – Mark Cooper • Vice President – Phil Melton Secretary/Treasurer – Amber Yarnevich • Members At Large –Brian Amick & Megan Schaefer

## SPECIAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING MINUTES

June 3, 2013

Timber Hill Estates (THE) Homes Association (HOA) held a Special Membership Meeting at Villa Ventura on June 3, 2013, at 7:00 pm. In attendance were Board Members Mark Cooper, Phil Melton, Amber Yarnevich, Brian Amick, and Megan Schaefer. Association Members in attendance included: Mike Cambiano, Tisha DesMarteau, Lisa Foster, Bill & Linda Hillix, Charlotte Humphrey, Robert & Sharon Jackson, Paula Melton, Michael & Elizabeth O'Bar, Vinceen Riley, and Jamey & Danielle Rose. No Association Members were voting by proxy.

Mark Cooper opened the meeting and welcomed everyone. Everyone was asked to sign in and make updates to contact information. The following topics were discussed and/or voted upon by the members:

ARCHITECTURAL COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION. Amber Yarnevich presented to the membership the proposed Amendments to the By-Laws regarding organization of the Architectural Committee. Amber explained that the current organization has been confusing because the subdivisions Declaration states that the two original developers are in charge of the Architectural Committee. However, many Association and Board members felt that this responsibility had been turned over to the Association in 2007 when the Association was first formed. Amber explained that there are no documents in the Association records assigning this particular responsibility over as may be required for any enforcement of the Architectural Committee duties. Additionally, Amber explained that these concerns came up as issues with the recent complaint from Bob Ray regarding the Amick's structure. For more details regarding this complaint see the April 23, 2013, letter to Bob Ray that was carbon copied via email to all Association members.

Bill Hillix, developer and Association member, stated that he has a letter prepared for his signature and signed by Gary Rowland, developer, to turn this responsibility over to the Association. Bill stated that he is willing to turn this responsibility over to the Association, but wants assurances that everyone will be treated fairly in the subdivision. Other Association members agreed that this was also a concern and wanted to ensure that as well.

comments from adjoining neighbors on requests to the Architectural Committee. While comments would be considered in the decision, the Architectural Committee would make decisions based on established guidelines to maintain fairness.

Members asked what the Architectural Committee is required to approve. Amber stated that there were five items in the Declaration that required approval of the Architectural Committee:

- 1. Temporary Structures or Out Buildings (Section 10),
- 2. TV Disk Antennas (Section 18),
- 3. Fences (Section 24),
- 4. Building Exterior Materials (Section 25), and
- 5. Any Building Erected or Altered (Section 27).

There was also discussion of other items that some members felt required approval such as paint colors and pools. Amber stated that these items were not specifically identified in the Declaration of Covenants. Some members felt that there must be another document missing requiring approval of these items. The Association members felt this should be looked into further by the Board or Architectural Committee.

Members expressed that they were not opposed to outdoor sheds, however members wanted to prohibit the use of plastic and metal sheds. Members felt that structures, such as sheds, needed to be similar in exterior appearance to the homes in the neighborhood, and should meet the same requirements as established in the Declaration such as for Building Exterior and Roofing.

Members also expressed concern for unmaintained yards and landscaping. Yard maintenance is not specifically identified in the current subdivision's Declaration. The City does have requirements for yard maintenance and upkeep, and members could make a complaint to the City. Members felt the Architectural Committee should look at this closer to see if there were ways to enforce this issue under our current Declaration or suggest possible amendments.

It was suggested that additional items not currently covered in the Declaration like concern of paint color, pools, and unmaintained yards be included as restrictions in the By-Laws. Amber stated that property restrictions had to be added to the Declaration, not the By-Laws, and Declaration amendments required 80% of the Lot Owners to vote in favor of the amendment to change the Declaration. The By-Laws are established to govern how the Association is organized and functions. Amber stated that her understanding was that in order for the property restrictions to be enforceable, they had to be included into the Declaration on file with the County. However, we can detail the organization of the Architectural Committee in the By-Laws, and detail how it operates to help maintain fairness.

An Architectural Committee was formed and includes: Bill Hillix, Amber Yarnevich, and Lisa Foster. The Architectural Committee will meet and finalize proposed By-Law Amendments to be voted on at the Annual Membership meeting in December 2013 that includes some of the discussion that was expressed at this meeting.

**PROPERTY COMPLAINTS.** Several members expressed concern regarding two property owners that the Association members felt were not following the property restrictions. One property owner had erected a small plastic toolshed without any request for approval. Members felt that the plastic material on the exterior of the small shed did not meet the "Exterior Building" requirements of Section 25 of the Declaration, and the plastic shed should be removed. A motion was made, seconded, and passed to have the Board send a letter to the property owner with the plastic toolshed requiring them to remove the toolshed.

The second property owner was not maintaining the yard by allowing grass to remain uncut and landscaping to become unsightly and overgrown. Additionally, the property owner has been seen dumping debris into the adjacent cemetery. A motion was made, seconded, and passed to have the Board send a letter to the property owner requiring them to maintain their yard.

ASSOCIATION FORMING NOT-FOR-PROFIT OR LLC. Amber Yarnevich stated that she would like to see the Association form a Not-For-Profit or LLC. Amber expressed concern of liability issues. Amber stated that currently, the Association did have a one million dollar insurance policy. However, should something happen, such as a child were severely injured in the detention basin, cemetery, etc, the money from the insurance policy could likely be used up quickly, and this left Board members and all Association members vulnerable to financial responsibilities in a law suit. Amber stated that establishing the Association as a Not-For-Profit or LLC provided significantly more protection to the Association Board members and members should the unthinkable happen.

Brian Amick stated that forming the Association as a Not-For-Profit or LLC was fairly simple and cost was maybe \$50 a year to maintain in good standing with the State of Missouri. One item that Brian emphasized was that forming a Not-For-Profit meant that we would have to be diligent about maintain minutes of all meetings. Failure to maintain minutes would leave the members vulnerable to liability.

**LUTHERAN SCHOOL CONCERNS UPDATE.** Members reported that the generators for the cell phone tower have turned on at least a couple of times in the last week late at night. The problem being that the generators make a horrible loud noise when running. Brian Amick stated that he had spoken with officials at the Lutheran School regarding the issue. Although the school does not own the tower or the generators in question, the school officials stated that one of the times there was an electrical power glitch at 3am in the morning which kicked the generators on for a period of time. While the generators running during power outages cannot be prevented, members wanted to make sure that the generators were not setup to run scheduled testing during the middle of the night.

Additionally, members stated that the trash truck is still empty the dumpster late at night causing loud noise. Members would prefer the school's dumpsters be emptied during the day or in the early evening when residents weren't sleeping.

Members stated that fumes from idling buses also continue to be a problem on the south side of the school's parking lot. Members requested that buses be parked and idled on the north side of the school's parking lot to reduce fumes from getting into resident's homes.

The Board stated that they would again speak to school officials regarding these concerns.

**NEIGHBORHOOD PICNIC.** Phil Melton stated that the Board had agreed to hold an annual neighborhood picnic again if the Members wanted to hold one. A motion was made, seconded, and passed for the Association to hold an Annual Neighborhood Picnic. Members agreed that September or early October was the preferred time of year to hold the picnic. Members expressed that dates to avoid for the picnic were Labor Day weekend, the second weekend of September because of 2 nearby festivals, and September 28<sup>th</sup> at the request of a member present. Phil Melton will be seeking out volunteers to serve on the Entertainment Committee with him to organize the event. The Board has agreed to provide a budget of \$800 of the festivities.

LAWN & LANDSCAPE CONCERNS. A member brought up concerns of the lack of mowing around the detention basin. The basins are becoming over grown, and weeds need to be sprayed to prevent damage to the detention basin liners. DiMartino, the company contracted to spray and mow, has had problems getting crews out here because of the rain. DiMartino needs a 48 hour window of no rain for any spraying of weeds to be effective. DiMartino is scheduling to take care of these issues this week. It was suggested that the mowing schedule of the detention basins be weekly during the spring and every two weeks in the summer. Members living around the detention basins stated that the spring grass growth was too much to only be mowing twice a week. The Board agreed that they would get these items taken care of and increase mowing of the detention basins in the spring.

plants along the fence died shortly after the spray was applied last year. The Board agreed to speak with DiMartino about not spraying so close to fence.

At least one large dead tree has been identified in the cemetery close to the fence. The Board is looking into getting quotes for the trees removal. At least one tree company did not want to take the tree down without large equipment because of the condition of the tree, and large equipment into the cemetery could cause damage to the gravesites. The Board was obtaining estimates from other companies for the trees removal without large equipment, and before the tree falls and causes any property damage.

SAFETY CONCERNS OF KIDS WITH "AIR SOFT PELLET GUNS". A member expressed concern regarding the use of air soft pellet guns by children in the neighborhood. Members stated that children who live in the neighborhood were using these guns that shoot plastic pellets throughout the neighborhood and in other neighbors property. Much concern was expressed by the members for small children's safety due to these guns which can easily cause eye injuries as well as other injuries to unsuspecting children, pets, and adults. Members asked that the Board send out a neighborhood email making everyone aware of the issue, and asking parents to teach their children to stay on their own property and use good safety when playing with these pellet guns. The Board agreed that an email would be sent out to the neighborhood.

THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED.



Homeowners Association • Kansas City, Missouri

President – Mark Cooper • Vice President – Phil Melton Secretary/Treasurer – Amber Yarnevich • Members At Large –Brian Amick & Megan Schaefer

## SPECIAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING MINUTES

June 3, 2013

Timber Hill Estates (THE) Homes Association (HOA) held a Special Membership Meeting at Villa Ventura on June 3, 2013, at 7:00 pm. In attendance were Board Members Mark Cooper, Phil Melton, Amber Yarnevich, Brian Amick, and Megan Schaefer. Association Members in attendance included: Mike Cambiano, Tisha DesMarteau, Lisa Foster, Bill & Linda Hillix, Charlotte Humphrey, Robert & Sharon Jackson, Paula Melton, Michael & Elizabeth O'Bar, Vinceen Riley, and Jamey & Danielle Rose. No Association Members were voting by proxy.

Mark Cooper opened the meeting and welcomed everyone. Everyone was asked to sign in and make updates to contact information. The following topics were discussed and/or voted upon by the members:

ARCHITECTURAL COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION. Amber Yarnevich presented to the membership the proposed Amendments to the By-Laws regarding organization of the Architectural Committee. Amber explained that the current organization has been confusing because the subdivisions Declaration states that the two original developers are in charge of the Architectural Committee. However, many Association and Board members felt that this responsibility had been turned over to the Association in 2007 when the Association was first formed. Amber explained that there are no documents in the Association records assigning this particular responsibility over as may be required for any enforcement of the Architectural Committee duties. Additionally, Amber explained that these concerns came up as issues with the recent complaint from Bob Ray regarding the Amick's structure. For more details regarding this complaint see the April 23, 2013, letter to Bob Ray that was carbon copied via email to all Association members.

Bill Hillix, developer and Association member, stated that he has a letter prepared for his signature and signed by Gary Rowland, developer, to turn this responsibility over to the Association. Bill stated that he is willing to turn this responsibility over to the Association, but wants assurances that everyone will be treated fairly in the subdivision. Other Association members agreed that this was also a concern and wanted to ensure that as well.

comments from adjoining neighbors on requests to the Architectural Committee. While comments would be considered in the decision, the Architectural Committee would make decisions based on established guidelines to maintain fairness.

Members asked what the Architectural Committee is required to approve. Amber stated that there were five items in the Declaration that required approval of the Architectural Committee:

- 1. Temporary Structures or Out Buildings (Section 10),
- 2. TV Disk Antennas (Section 18),
- 3. Fences (Section 24),
- 4. Building Exterior Materials (Section 25), and
- 5. Any Building Erected or Altered (Section 27).

There was also discussion of other items that some members felt required approval such as paint colors and pools. Amber stated that these items were not specifically identified in the Declaration of Covenants. Some members felt that there must be another document missing requiring approval of these items. The Association members felt this should be looked into further by the Board or Architectural Committee.

Members expressed that they were not opposed to outdoor sheds, however members wanted to prohibit the use of plastic and metal sheds. Members felt that structures, such as sheds, needed to be similar in exterior appearance to the homes in the neighborhood, and should meet the same requirements as established in the Declaration such as for Building Exterior and Roofing.

Members also expressed concern for unmaintained yards and landscaping. Yard maintenance is not specifically identified in the current subdivision's Declaration. The City does have requirements for yard maintenance and upkeep, and members could make a complaint to the City. Members felt the Architectural Committee should look at this closer to see if there were ways to enforce this issue under our current Declaration or suggest possible amendments.

It was suggested that additional items not currently covered in the Declaration like concern of paint color, pools, and unmaintained yards be included as restrictions in the By-Laws. Amber stated that property restrictions had to be added to the Declaration, not the By-Laws, and Declaration amendments required 80% of the Lot Owners to vote in favor of the amendment to change the Declaration. The By-Laws are established to govern how the Association is organized and functions. Amber stated that her understanding was that in order for the property restrictions to be enforceable, they had to be included into the Declaration on file with the County. However, we can detail the organization of the Architectural Committee in the By-Laws, and detail how it operates to help maintain fairness.

An Architectural Committee was formed and includes: Bill Hillix, Amber Yarnevich, and Lisa Foster. The Architectural Committee will meet and finalize proposed By-Law Amendments to be voted on at the Annual Membership meeting in December 2013 that includes some of the discussion that was expressed at this meeting.

**PROPERTY COMPLAINTS.** Several members expressed concern regarding two property owners that the Association members felt were not following the property restrictions. One property owner had erected a small plastic toolshed without any request for approval. Members felt that the plastic material on the exterior of the small shed did not meet the "Exterior Building" requirements of Section 25 of the Declaration, and the plastic shed should be removed. A motion was made, seconded, and passed to have the Board send a letter to the property owner with the plastic toolshed requiring them to remove the toolshed.

The second property owner was not maintaining the yard by allowing grass to remain uncut and landscaping to become unsightly and overgrown. Additionally, the property owner has been seen dumping debris into the adjacent cemetery. A motion was made, seconded, and passed to have the Board send a letter to the property owner requiring them to maintain their yard.

ASSOCIATION FORMING NOT-FOR-PROFIT OR LLC. Amber Yarnevich stated that she would like to see the Association form a Not-For-Profit or LLC. Amber expressed concern of liability issues. Amber stated that currently, the Association did have a one million dollar insurance policy. However, should something happen, such as a child were severely injured in the detention basin, cemetery, etc, the money from the insurance policy could likely be used up quickly, and this left Board members and all Association members vulnerable to financial responsibilities in a law suit. Amber stated that establishing the Association as a Not-For-Profit or LLC provided significantly more protection to the Association Board members and members should the unthinkable happen.

Brian Amick stated that forming the Association as a Not-For-Profit or LLC was fairly simple and cost was maybe \$50 a year to maintain in good standing with the State of Missouri. One item that Brian emphasized was that forming a Not-For-Profit meant that we would have to be diligent about maintain minutes of all meetings. Failure to maintain minutes would leave the members vulnerable to liability.

**LUTHERAN SCHOOL CONCERNS UPDATE.** Members reported that the generators for the cell phone tower have turned on at least a couple of times in the last week late at night. The problem being that the generators make a horrible loud noise when running. Brian Amick stated that he had spoken with officials at the Lutheran School regarding the issue. Although the school does not own the tower or the generators in question, the school officials stated that one of the times there was an electrical power glitch at 3am in the morning which kicked the generators on for a period of time. While the generators running during power outages cannot be prevented, members wanted to make sure that the generators were not setup to run scheduled testing during the middle of the night.

Additionally, members stated that the trash truck is still empty the dumpster late at night causing loud noise. Members would prefer the school's dumpsters be emptied during the day or in the early evening when residents weren't sleeping.

Members stated that fumes from idling buses also continue to be a problem on the south side of the school's parking lot. Members requested that buses be parked and idled on the north side of the school's parking lot to reduce fumes from getting into resident's homes.

The Board stated that they would again speak to school officials regarding these concerns.

**NEIGHBORHOOD PICNIC.** Phil Melton stated that the Board had agreed to hold an annual neighborhood picnic again if the Members wanted to hold one. A motion was made, seconded, and passed for the Association to hold an Annual Neighborhood Picnic. Members agreed that September or early October was the preferred time of year to hold the picnic. Members expressed that dates to avoid for the picnic were Labor Day weekend, the second weekend of September because of 2 nearby festivals, and September 28<sup>th</sup> at the request of a member present. Phil Melton will be seeking out volunteers to serve on the Entertainment Committee with him to organize the event. The Board has agreed to provide a budget of \$800 of the festivities.

LAWN & LANDSCAPE CONCERNS. A member brought up concerns of the lack of mowing around the detention basin. The basins are becoming over grown, and weeds need to be sprayed to prevent damage to the detention basin liners. DiMartino, the company contracted to spray and mow, has had problems getting crews out here because of the rain. DiMartino needs a 48 hour window of no rain for any spraying of weeds to be effective. DiMartino is scheduling to take care of these issues this week. It was suggested that the mowing schedule of the detention basins be weekly during the spring and every two weeks in the summer. Members living around the detention basins stated that the spring grass growth was too much to only be mowing twice a week. The Board agreed that they would get these items taken care of and increase mowing of the detention basins in the spring.

plants along the fence died shortly after the spray was applied last year. The Board agreed to speak with DiMartino about not spraying so close to fence.

At least one large dead tree has been identified in the cemetery close to the fence. The Board is looking into getting quotes for the trees removal. At least one tree company did not want to take the tree down without large equipment because of the condition of the tree, and large equipment into the cemetery could cause damage to the gravesites. The Board was obtaining estimates from other companies for the trees removal without large equipment, and before the tree falls and causes any property damage.

SAFETY CONCERNS OF KIDS WITH "AIR SOFT PELLET GUNS". A member expressed concern regarding the use of air soft pellet guns by children in the neighborhood. Members stated that children who live in the neighborhood were using these guns that shoot plastic pellets throughout the neighborhood and in other neighbors property. Much concern was expressed by the members for small children's safety due to these guns which can easily cause eye injuries as well as other injuries to unsuspecting children, pets, and adults. Members asked that the Board send out a neighborhood email making everyone aware of the issue, and asking parents to teach their children to stay on their own property and use good safety when playing with these pellet guns. The Board agreed that an email would be sent out to the neighborhood.

THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED.



Homeowners Association • Kansas City, Missouri

President – Mark Cooper • Vice President – Phil Melton Secretary/Treasurer – Amber Yarnevich • Members At Large –Brian Amick & Megan Schaefer

## SPECIAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING MINUTES

June 3, 2013

Timber Hill Estates (THE) Homes Association (HOA) held a Special Membership Meeting at Villa Ventura on June 3, 2013, at 7:00 pm. In attendance were Board Members Mark Cooper, Phil Melton, Amber Yarnevich, Brian Amick, and Megan Schaefer. Association Members in attendance included: Mike Cambiano, Tisha DesMarteau, Lisa Foster, Bill & Linda Hillix, Charlotte Humphrey, Robert & Sharon Jackson, Paula Melton, Michael & Elizabeth O'Bar, Vinceen Riley, and Jamey & Danielle Rose. No Association Members were voting by proxy.

Mark Cooper opened the meeting and welcomed everyone. Everyone was asked to sign in and make updates to contact information. The following topics were discussed and/or voted upon by the members:

ARCHITECTURAL COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION. Amber Yarnevich presented to the membership the proposed Amendments to the By-Laws regarding organization of the Architectural Committee. Amber explained that the current organization has been confusing because the subdivisions Declaration states that the two original developers are in charge of the Architectural Committee. However, many Association and Board members felt that this responsibility had been turned over to the Association in 2007 when the Association was first formed. Amber explained that there are no documents in the Association records assigning this particular responsibility over as may be required for any enforcement of the Architectural Committee duties. Additionally, Amber explained that these concerns came up as issues with the recent complaint from Bob Ray regarding the Amick's structure. For more details regarding this complaint see the April 23, 2013, letter to Bob Ray that was carbon copied via email to all Association members.

Bill Hillix, developer and Association member, stated that he has a letter prepared for his signature and signed by Gary Rowland, developer, to turn this responsibility over to the Association. Bill stated that he is willing to turn this responsibility over to the Association, but wants assurances that everyone will be treated fairly in the subdivision. Other Association members agreed that this was also a concern and wanted to ensure that as well.

comments from adjoining neighbors on requests to the Architectural Committee. While comments would be considered in the decision, the Architectural Committee would make decisions based on established guidelines to maintain fairness.

Members asked what the Architectural Committee is required to approve. Amber stated that there were five items in the Declaration that required approval of the Architectural Committee:

- 1. Temporary Structures or Out Buildings (Section 10),
- 2. TV Disk Antennas (Section 18),
- 3. Fences (Section 24),
- 4. Building Exterior Materials (Section 25), and
- 5. Any Building Erected or Altered (Section 27).

There was also discussion of other items that some members felt required approval such as paint colors and pools. Amber stated that these items were not specifically identified in the Declaration of Covenants. Some members felt that there must be another document missing requiring approval of these items. The Association members felt this should be looked into further by the Board or Architectural Committee.

Members expressed that they were not opposed to outdoor sheds, however members wanted to prohibit the use of plastic and metal sheds. Members felt that structures, such as sheds, needed to be similar in exterior appearance to the homes in the neighborhood, and should meet the same requirements as established in the Declaration such as for Building Exterior and Roofing.

Members also expressed concern for unmaintained yards and landscaping. Yard maintenance is not specifically identified in the current subdivision's Declaration. The City does have requirements for yard maintenance and upkeep, and members could make a complaint to the City. Members felt the Architectural Committee should look at this closer to see if there were ways to enforce this issue under our current Declaration or suggest possible amendments.

It was suggested that additional items not currently covered in the Declaration like concern of paint color, pools, and unmaintained yards be included as restrictions in the By-Laws. Amber stated that property restrictions had to be added to the Declaration, not the By-Laws, and Declaration amendments required 80% of the Lot Owners to vote in favor of the amendment to change the Declaration. The By-Laws are established to govern how the Association is organized and functions. Amber stated that her understanding was that in order for the property restrictions to be enforceable, they had to be included into the Declaration on file with the County. However, we can detail the organization of the Architectural Committee in the By-Laws, and detail how it operates to help maintain fairness.

An Architectural Committee was formed and includes: Bill Hillix, Amber Yarnevich, and Lisa Foster. The Architectural Committee will meet and finalize proposed By-Law Amendments to be voted on at the Annual Membership meeting in December 2013 that includes some of the discussion that was expressed at this meeting.

**PROPERTY COMPLAINTS.** Several members expressed concern regarding two property owners that the Association members felt were not following the property restrictions. One property owner had erected a small plastic toolshed without any request for approval. Members felt that the plastic material on the exterior of the small shed did not meet the "Exterior Building" requirements of Section 25 of the Declaration, and the plastic shed should be removed. A motion was made, seconded, and passed to have the Board send a letter to the property owner with the plastic toolshed requiring them to remove the toolshed.

The second property owner was not maintaining the yard by allowing grass to remain uncut and landscaping to become unsightly and overgrown. Additionally, the property owner has been seen dumping debris into the adjacent cemetery. A motion was made, seconded, and passed to have the Board send a letter to the property owner requiring them to maintain their yard.

ASSOCIATION FORMING NOT-FOR-PROFIT OR LLC. Amber Yarnevich stated that she would like to see the Association form a Not-For-Profit or LLC. Amber expressed concern of liability issues. Amber stated that currently, the Association did have a one million dollar insurance policy. However, should something happen, such as a child were severely injured in the detention basin, cemetery, etc, the money from the insurance policy could likely be used up quickly, and this left Board members and all Association members vulnerable to financial responsibilities in a law suit. Amber stated that establishing the Association as a Not-For-Profit or LLC provided significantly more protection to the Association Board members and members should the unthinkable happen.

Brian Amick stated that forming the Association as a Not-For-Profit or LLC was fairly simple and cost was maybe \$50 a year to maintain in good standing with the State of Missouri. One item that Brian emphasized was that forming a Not-For-Profit meant that we would have to be diligent about maintain minutes of all meetings. Failure to maintain minutes would leave the members vulnerable to liability.

**LUTHERAN SCHOOL CONCERNS UPDATE.** Members reported that the generators for the cell phone tower have turned on at least a couple of times in the last week late at night. The problem being that the generators make a horrible loud noise when running. Brian Amick stated that he had spoken with officials at the Lutheran School regarding the issue. Although the school does not own the tower or the generators in question, the school officials stated that one of the times there was an electrical power glitch at 3am in the morning which kicked the generators on for a period of time. While the generators running during power outages cannot be prevented, members wanted to make sure that the generators were not setup to run scheduled testing during the middle of the night.

Additionally, members stated that the trash truck is still empty the dumpster late at night causing loud noise. Members would prefer the school's dumpsters be emptied during the day or in the early evening when residents weren't sleeping.

Members stated that fumes from idling buses also continue to be a problem on the south side of the school's parking lot. Members requested that buses be parked and idled on the north side of the school's parking lot to reduce fumes from getting into resident's homes.

The Board stated that they would again speak to school officials regarding these concerns.

**NEIGHBORHOOD PICNIC.** Phil Melton stated that the Board had agreed to hold an annual neighborhood picnic again if the Members wanted to hold one. A motion was made, seconded, and passed for the Association to hold an Annual Neighborhood Picnic. Members agreed that September or early October was the preferred time of year to hold the picnic. Members expressed that dates to avoid for the picnic were Labor Day weekend, the second weekend of September because of 2 nearby festivals, and September 28<sup>th</sup> at the request of a member present. Phil Melton will be seeking out volunteers to serve on the Entertainment Committee with him to organize the event. The Board has agreed to provide a budget of \$800 of the festivities.

LAWN & LANDSCAPE CONCERNS. A member brought up concerns of the lack of mowing around the detention basin. The basins are becoming over grown, and weeds need to be sprayed to prevent damage to the detention basin liners. DiMartino, the company contracted to spray and mow, has had problems getting crews out here because of the rain. DiMartino needs a 48 hour window of no rain for any spraying of weeds to be effective. DiMartino is scheduling to take care of these issues this week. It was suggested that the mowing schedule of the detention basins be weekly during the spring and every two weeks in the summer. Members living around the detention basins stated that the spring grass growth was too much to only be mowing twice a week. The Board agreed that they would get these items taken care of and increase mowing of the detention basins in the spring.

plants along the fence died shortly after the spray was applied last year. The Board agreed to speak with DiMartino about not spraying so close to fence.

At least one large dead tree has been identified in the cemetery close to the fence. The Board is looking into getting quotes for the trees removal. At least one tree company did not want to take the tree down without large equipment because of the condition of the tree, and large equipment into the cemetery could cause damage to the gravesites. The Board was obtaining estimates from other companies for the trees removal without large equipment, and before the tree falls and causes any property damage.

SAFETY CONCERNS OF KIDS WITH "AIR SOFT PELLET GUNS". A member expressed concern regarding the use of air soft pellet guns by children in the neighborhood. Members stated that children who live in the neighborhood were using these guns that shoot plastic pellets throughout the neighborhood and in other neighbors property. Much concern was expressed by the members for small children's safety due to these guns which can easily cause eye injuries as well as other injuries to unsuspecting children, pets, and adults. Members asked that the Board send out a neighborhood email making everyone aware of the issue, and asking parents to teach their children to stay on their own property and use good safety when playing with these pellet guns. The Board agreed that an email would be sent out to the neighborhood.

THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED.



Homeowners Association • Kansas City, Missouri

President – Mark Cooper • Vice President – Phil Melton Secretary/Treasurer – Amber Yarnevich • Members At Large –Brian Amick & Megan Schaefer

### SPECIAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING MINUTES

June 3, 2013

Timber Hill Estates (THE) Homes Association (HOA) held a Special Membership Meeting at Villa Ventura on June 3, 2013, at 7:00 pm. In attendance were Board Members Mark Cooper, Phil Melton, Amber Yarnevich, Brian Amick, and Megan Schaefer. Association Members in attendance included: Mike Cambiano, Tisha DesMarteau, Lisa Foster, Bill & Linda Hillix, Charlotte Humphrey, Robert & Sharon Jackson, Paula Melton, Michael & Elizabeth O'Bar, Vinceen Riley, and Jamey & Danielle Rose. No Association Members were voting by proxy.

Mark Cooper opened the meeting and welcomed everyone. Everyone was asked to sign in and make updates to contact information. The following topics were discussed and/or voted upon by the members:

ARCHITECTURAL COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION. Amber Yarnevich presented to the membership the proposed Amendments to the By-Laws regarding organization of the Architectural Committee. Amber explained that the current organization has been confusing because the subdivisions Declaration states that the two original developers are in charge of the Architectural Committee. However, many Association and Board members felt that this responsibility had been turned over to the Association in 2007 when the Association was first formed. Amber explained that there are no documents in the Association records assigning this particular responsibility over as may be required for any enforcement of the Architectural Committee duties. Additionally, Amber explained that these concerns came up as issues with the recent complaint from Bob Ray regarding the Amick's structure. For more details regarding this complaint see the April 23, 2013, letter to Bob Ray that was carbon copied via email to all Association members.

Bill Hillix, developer and Association member, stated that he has a letter prepared for his signature and signed by Gary Rowland, developer, to turn this responsibility over to the Association. Bill stated that he is willing to turn this responsibility over to the Association, but wants assurances that everyone will be treated fairly in the subdivision. Other Association members agreed that this was also a concern and wanted to ensure that as well.

comments from adjoining neighbors on requests to the Architectural Committee. While comments would be considered in the decision, the Architectural Committee would make decisions based on established guidelines to maintain fairness.

Members asked what the Architectural Committee is required to approve. Amber stated that there were five items in the Declaration that required approval of the Architectural Committee:

- 1. Temporary Structures or Out Buildings (Section 10),
- 2. TV Disk Antennas (Section 18),
- 3. Fences (Section 24),
- 4. Building Exterior Materials (Section 25), and
- 5. Any Building Erected or Altered (Section 27).

There was also discussion of other items that some members felt required approval such as paint colors and pools. Amber stated that these items were not specifically identified in the Declaration of Covenants. Some members felt that there must be another document missing requiring approval of these items. The Association members felt this should be looked into further by the Board or Architectural Committee.

Members expressed that they were not opposed to outdoor sheds, however members wanted to prohibit the use of plastic and metal sheds. Members felt that structures, such as sheds, needed to be similar in exterior appearance to the homes in the neighborhood, and should meet the same requirements as established in the Declaration such as for Building Exterior and Roofing.

Members also expressed concern for unmaintained yards and landscaping. Yard maintenance is not specifically identified in the current subdivision's Declaration. The City does have requirements for yard maintenance and upkeep, and members could make a complaint to the City. Members felt the Architectural Committee should look at this closer to see if there were ways to enforce this issue under our current Declaration or suggest possible amendments.

It was suggested that additional items not currently covered in the Declaration like concern of paint color, pools, and unmaintained yards be included as restrictions in the By-Laws. Amber stated that property restrictions had to be added to the Declaration, not the By-Laws, and Declaration amendments required 80% of the Lot Owners to vote in favor of the amendment to change the Declaration. The By-Laws are established to govern how the Association is organized and functions. Amber stated that her understanding was that in order for the property restrictions to be enforceable, they had to be included into the Declaration on file with the County. However, we can detail the organization of the Architectural Committee in the By-Laws, and detail how it operates to help maintain fairness.

An Architectural Committee was formed and includes: Bill Hillix, Amber Yarnevich, and Lisa Foster. The Architectural Committee will meet and finalize proposed By-Law Amendments to be voted on at the Annual Membership meeting in December 2013 that includes some of the discussion that was expressed at this meeting.

**PROPERTY COMPLAINTS.** Several members expressed concern regarding two property owners that the Association members felt were not following the property restrictions. One property owner had erected a small plastic toolshed without any request for approval. Members felt that the plastic material on the exterior of the small shed did not meet the "Exterior Building" requirements of Section 25 of the Declaration, and the plastic shed should be removed. A motion was made, seconded, and passed to have the Board send a letter to the property owner with the plastic toolshed requiring them to remove the toolshed.

The second property owner was not maintaining the yard by allowing grass to remain uncut and landscaping to become unsightly and overgrown. Additionally, the property owner has been seen dumping debris into the adjacent cemetery. A motion was made, seconded, and passed to have the Board send a letter to the property owner requiring them to maintain their yard.

ASSOCIATION FORMING NOT-FOR-PROFIT OR LLC. Amber Yarnevich stated that she would like to see the Association form a Not-For-Profit or LLC. Amber expressed concern of liability issues. Amber stated that currently, the Association did have a one million dollar insurance policy. However, should something happen, such as a child were severely injured in the detention basin, cemetery, etc, the money from the insurance policy could likely be used up quickly, and this left Board members and all Association members vulnerable to financial responsibilities in a law suit. Amber stated that establishing the Association as a Not-For-Profit or LLC provided significantly more protection to the Association Board members and members should the unthinkable happen.

Brian Amick stated that forming the Association as a Not-For-Profit or LLC was fairly simple and cost was maybe \$50 a year to maintain in good standing with the State of Missouri. One item that Brian emphasized was that forming a Not-For-Profit meant that we would have to be diligent about maintain minutes of all meetings. Failure to maintain minutes would leave the members vulnerable to liability.

**LUTHERAN SCHOOL CONCERNS UPDATE.** Members reported that the generators for the cell phone tower have turned on at least a couple of times in the last week late at night. The problem being that the generators make a horrible loud noise when running. Brian Amick stated that he had spoken with officials at the Lutheran School regarding the issue. Although the school does not own the tower or the generators in question, the school officials stated that one of the times there was an electrical power glitch at 3am in the morning which kicked the generators on for a period of time. While the generators running during power outages cannot be prevented, members wanted to make sure that the generators were not setup to run scheduled testing during the middle of the night.

Additionally, members stated that the trash truck is still empty the dumpster late at night causing loud noise. Members would prefer the school's dumpsters be emptied during the day or in the early evening when residents weren't sleeping.

Members stated that fumes from idling buses also continue to be a problem on the south side of the school's parking lot. Members requested that buses be parked and idled on the north side of the school's parking lot to reduce fumes from getting into resident's homes.

The Board stated that they would again speak to school officials regarding these concerns.

**NEIGHBORHOOD PICNIC.** Phil Melton stated that the Board had agreed to hold an annual neighborhood picnic again if the Members wanted to hold one. A motion was made, seconded, and passed for the Association to hold an Annual Neighborhood Picnic. Members agreed that September or early October was the preferred time of year to hold the picnic. Members expressed that dates to avoid for the picnic were Labor Day weekend, the second weekend of September because of 2 nearby festivals, and September 28<sup>th</sup> at the request of a member present. Phil Melton will be seeking out volunteers to serve on the Entertainment Committee with him to organize the event. The Board has agreed to provide a budget of \$800 of the festivities.

LAWN & LANDSCAPE CONCERNS. A member brought up concerns of the lack of mowing around the detention basin. The basins are becoming over grown, and weeds need to be sprayed to prevent damage to the detention basin liners. DiMartino, the company contracted to spray and mow, has had problems getting crews out here because of the rain. DiMartino needs a 48 hour window of no rain for any spraying of weeds to be effective. DiMartino is scheduling to take care of these issues this week. It was suggested that the mowing schedule of the detention basins be weekly during the spring and every two weeks in the summer. Members living around the detention basins stated that the spring grass growth was too much to only be mowing twice a week. The Board agreed that they would get these items taken care of and increase mowing of the detention basins in the spring.

plants along the fence died shortly after the spray was applied last year. The Board agreed to speak with DiMartino about not spraying so close to fence.

At least one large dead tree has been identified in the cemetery close to the fence. The Board is looking into getting quotes for the trees removal. At least one tree company did not want to take the tree down without large equipment because of the condition of the tree, and large equipment into the cemetery could cause damage to the gravesites. The Board was obtaining estimates from other companies for the trees removal without large equipment, and before the tree falls and causes any property damage.

SAFETY CONCERNS OF KIDS WITH "AIR SOFT PELLET GUNS". A member expressed concern regarding the use of air soft pellet guns by children in the neighborhood. Members stated that children who live in the neighborhood were using these guns that shoot plastic pellets throughout the neighborhood and in other neighbors property. Much concern was expressed by the members for small children's safety due to these guns which can easily cause eye injuries as well as other injuries to unsuspecting children, pets, and adults. Members asked that the Board send out a neighborhood email making everyone aware of the issue, and asking parents to teach their children to stay on their own property and use good safety when playing with these pellet guns. The Board agreed that an email would be sent out to the neighborhood.

THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED.



Homeowners Association • Kansas City, Missouri

President – Mark Cooper • Vice President – Phil Melton Secretary/Treasurer – Amber Yarnevich • Members At Large –Brian Amick & Megan Schaefer

### SPECIAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING MINUTES

June 3, 2013

Timber Hill Estates (THE) Homes Association (HOA) held a Special Membership Meeting at Villa Ventura on June 3, 2013, at 7:00 pm. In attendance were Board Members Mark Cooper, Phil Melton, Amber Yarnevich, Brian Amick, and Megan Schaefer. Association Members in attendance included: Mike Cambiano, Tisha DesMarteau, Lisa Foster, Bill & Linda Hillix, Charlotte Humphrey, Robert & Sharon Jackson, Paula Melton, Michael & Elizabeth O'Bar, Vinceen Riley, and Jamey & Danielle Rose. No Association Members were voting by proxy.

Mark Cooper opened the meeting and welcomed everyone. Everyone was asked to sign in and make updates to contact information. The following topics were discussed and/or voted upon by the members:

ARCHITECTURAL COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION. Amber Yarnevich presented to the membership the proposed Amendments to the By-Laws regarding organization of the Architectural Committee. Amber explained that the current organization has been confusing because the subdivisions Declaration states that the two original developers are in charge of the Architectural Committee. However, many Association and Board members felt that this responsibility had been turned over to the Association in 2007 when the Association was first formed. Amber explained that there are no documents in the Association records assigning this particular responsibility over as may be required for any enforcement of the Architectural Committee duties. Additionally, Amber explained that these concerns came up as issues with the recent complaint from Bob Ray regarding the Amick's structure. For more details regarding this complaint see the April 23, 2013, letter to Bob Ray that was carbon copied via email to all Association members.

Bill Hillix, developer and Association member, stated that he has a letter prepared for his signature and signed by Gary Rowland, developer, to turn this responsibility over to the Association. Bill stated that he is willing to turn this responsibility over to the Association, but wants assurances that everyone will be treated fairly in the subdivision. Other Association members agreed that this was also a concern and wanted to ensure that as well.

comments from adjoining neighbors on requests to the Architectural Committee. While comments would be considered in the decision, the Architectural Committee would make decisions based on established guidelines to maintain fairness.

Members asked what the Architectural Committee is required to approve. Amber stated that there were five items in the Declaration that required approval of the Architectural Committee:

- 1. Temporary Structures or Out Buildings (Section 10),
- 2. TV Disk Antennas (Section 18),
- 3. Fences (Section 24),
- 4. Building Exterior Materials (Section 25), and
- 5. Any Building Erected or Altered (Section 27).

There was also discussion of other items that some members felt required approval such as paint colors and pools. Amber stated that these items were not specifically identified in the Declaration of Covenants. Some members felt that there must be another document missing requiring approval of these items. The Association members felt this should be looked into further by the Board or Architectural Committee.

Members expressed that they were not opposed to outdoor sheds, however members wanted to prohibit the use of plastic and metal sheds. Members felt that structures, such as sheds, needed to be similar in exterior appearance to the homes in the neighborhood, and should meet the same requirements as established in the Declaration such as for Building Exterior and Roofing.

Members also expressed concern for unmaintained yards and landscaping. Yard maintenance is not specifically identified in the current subdivision's Declaration. The City does have requirements for yard maintenance and upkeep, and members could make a complaint to the City. Members felt the Architectural Committee should look at this closer to see if there were ways to enforce this issue under our current Declaration or suggest possible amendments.

It was suggested that additional items not currently covered in the Declaration like concern of paint color, pools, and unmaintained yards be included as restrictions in the By-Laws. Amber stated that property restrictions had to be added to the Declaration, not the By-Laws, and Declaration amendments required 80% of the Lot Owners to vote in favor of the amendment to change the Declaration. The By-Laws are established to govern how the Association is organized and functions. Amber stated that her understanding was that in order for the property restrictions to be enforceable, they had to be included into the Declaration on file with the County. However, we can detail the organization of the Architectural Committee in the By-Laws, and detail how it operates to help maintain fairness.

An Architectural Committee was formed and includes: Bill Hillix, Amber Yarnevich, and Lisa Foster. The Architectural Committee will meet and finalize proposed By-Law Amendments to be voted on at the Annual Membership meeting in December 2013 that includes some of the discussion that was expressed at this meeting.

**PROPERTY COMPLAINTS.** Several members expressed concern regarding two property owners that the Association members felt were not following the property restrictions. One property owner had erected a small plastic toolshed without any request for approval. Members felt that the plastic material on the exterior of the small shed did not meet the "Exterior Building" requirements of Section 25 of the Declaration, and the plastic shed should be removed. A motion was made, seconded, and passed to have the Board send a letter to the property owner with the plastic toolshed requiring them to remove the toolshed.

The second property owner was not maintaining the yard by allowing grass to remain uncut and landscaping to become unsightly and overgrown. Additionally, the property owner has been seen dumping debris into the adjacent cemetery. A motion was made, seconded, and passed to have the Board send a letter to the property owner requiring them to maintain their yard.

ASSOCIATION FORMING NOT-FOR-PROFIT OR LLC. Amber Yarnevich stated that she would like to see the Association form a Not-For-Profit or LLC. Amber expressed concern of liability issues. Amber stated that currently, the Association did have a one million dollar insurance policy. However, should something happen, such as a child were severely injured in the detention basin, cemetery, etc, the money from the insurance policy could likely be used up quickly, and this left Board members and all Association members vulnerable to financial responsibilities in a law suit. Amber stated that establishing the Association as a Not-For-Profit or LLC provided significantly more protection to the Association Board members and members should the unthinkable happen.

Brian Amick stated that forming the Association as a Not-For-Profit or LLC was fairly simple and cost was maybe \$50 a year to maintain in good standing with the State of Missouri. One item that Brian emphasized was that forming a Not-For-Profit meant that we would have to be diligent about maintain minutes of all meetings. Failure to maintain minutes would leave the members vulnerable to liability.

**LUTHERAN SCHOOL CONCERNS UPDATE.** Members reported that the generators for the cell phone tower have turned on at least a couple of times in the last week late at night. The problem being that the generators make a horrible loud noise when running. Brian Amick stated that he had spoken with officials at the Lutheran School regarding the issue. Although the school does not own the tower or the generators in question, the school officials stated that one of the times there was an electrical power glitch at 3am in the morning which kicked the generators on for a period of time. While the generators running during power outages cannot be prevented, members wanted to make sure that the generators were not setup to run scheduled testing during the middle of the night.

Additionally, members stated that the trash truck is still empty the dumpster late at night causing loud noise. Members would prefer the school's dumpsters be emptied during the day or in the early evening when residents weren't sleeping.

Members stated that fumes from idling buses also continue to be a problem on the south side of the school's parking lot. Members requested that buses be parked and idled on the north side of the school's parking lot to reduce fumes from getting into resident's homes.

The Board stated that they would again speak to school officials regarding these concerns.

**NEIGHBORHOOD PICNIC.** Phil Melton stated that the Board had agreed to hold an annual neighborhood picnic again if the Members wanted to hold one. A motion was made, seconded, and passed for the Association to hold an Annual Neighborhood Picnic. Members agreed that September or early October was the preferred time of year to hold the picnic. Members expressed that dates to avoid for the picnic were Labor Day weekend, the second weekend of September because of 2 nearby festivals, and September 28<sup>th</sup> at the request of a member present. Phil Melton will be seeking out volunteers to serve on the Entertainment Committee with him to organize the event. The Board has agreed to provide a budget of \$800 of the festivities.

LAWN & LANDSCAPE CONCERNS. A member brought up concerns of the lack of mowing around the detention basin. The basins are becoming over grown, and weeds need to be sprayed to prevent damage to the detention basin liners. DiMartino, the company contracted to spray and mow, has had problems getting crews out here because of the rain. DiMartino needs a 48 hour window of no rain for any spraying of weeds to be effective. DiMartino is scheduling to take care of these issues this week. It was suggested that the mowing schedule of the detention basins be weekly during the spring and every two weeks in the summer. Members living around the detention basins stated that the spring grass growth was too much to only be mowing twice a week. The Board agreed that they would get these items taken care of and increase mowing of the detention basins in the spring.

plants along the fence died shortly after the spray was applied last year. The Board agreed to speak with DiMartino about not spraying so close to fence.

At least one large dead tree has been identified in the cemetery close to the fence. The Board is looking into getting quotes for the trees removal. At least one tree company did not want to take the tree down without large equipment because of the condition of the tree, and large equipment into the cemetery could cause damage to the gravesites. The Board was obtaining estimates from other companies for the trees removal without large equipment, and before the tree falls and causes any property damage.

SAFETY CONCERNS OF KIDS WITH "AIR SOFT PELLET GUNS". A member expressed concern regarding the use of air soft pellet guns by children in the neighborhood. Members stated that children who live in the neighborhood were using these guns that shoot plastic pellets throughout the neighborhood and in other neighbors property. Much concern was expressed by the members for small children's safety due to these guns which can easily cause eye injuries as well as other injuries to unsuspecting children, pets, and adults. Members asked that the Board send out a neighborhood email making everyone aware of the issue, and asking parents to teach their children to stay on their own property and use good safety when playing with these pellet guns. The Board agreed that an email would be sent out to the neighborhood.

THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED.